ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2003
1:43 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln

Senat or Donny d son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1
Relating to economc devel opnent generated by new road
construction and to the design and construction of the Hot
Springs Loop Road to connect Chena Hot Springs and Crcle Hot
Springs.

MOVED CSSCR 1(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to construction of highways by the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 53

"An Act relating to disposition of a traffic offense involving
the death of a person; providing for the revocation of driving
privileges by a court for a driver convicted of a violation of
traffic laws in connection with a fatal notor vehicle or
commercial notor vehicle accident; anending Rules 43 and 43.1,
Al aska Rules of Adm nistration; and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED SB 53 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 54
"An Act exenpting flight crew nenbers of certain air carriers
fromovertinme pay requirenments.”

MOVED SB 54 OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 18, 2003



SCR 1 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 2/11/03.

SB 40 - No previous action to record.

SB 53 - No previous action to record.

SB 54 - See Labor and Commerce m nutes dated 2/27/03.

W TNESS REG STER

Senator Gary W/ ken

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SCR 1

M. Mrrill Hakal a

140 Front St.

Fai r banks, AK 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SCR 1

M. Ral ph Swarthout, Regional Director

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF)
Nor t hern Regi on

2301 Peger Rd

Fai r banks, AK 99709-5316

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 1 and SB 40

Paul Nat haniel, First Chief

Circle Village Council

P. O. Box 89

Circle, AK 99733

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 1

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 54

M. Richard Schmtz

Staff to Chair Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 40

M. Kevin R tchie

Al aska Muni ci pal League

217 2nd St.

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposed to SB 40

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 18, 2003



M. John Brown, Field Representative

Qper ati ng Engi neers Local 302

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 1 and SB 40

Ms. Eden Larsen, Executive Director
Associ ated Builders and Contractors, Inc.
Al aska Chapt er

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 40

Ms. Judy Martinson

Nort hcoast Construction

P. 0. Box 1089

Nonme, AK 99762

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 40

M. Dennis Poshard

Legi sl ative Liaison/ Speci al Assi stant

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 40

M. Mark O Brien

Chi ef Contracts O ficer

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 40

M. Frank Ri chards

St at ewi de Mai nt enance Engi neer

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 40

Senator Scott Ogan

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 53

Ms. Nancy Canpbel |

No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 53

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 18, 2003



Ms. Anne Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney General
Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

P. 0. Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 53

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-02, SIDE A

CHAIR JOHN COMNDERY called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:43 p.m Senat ors \Wagoner,
Therriault, O son and Chair Cowdery were present. SCR 1, SB 40,
SB 53 and SB 54 were before the commttee.

SCR_ 1- SUPPORT ROADS/ HOT SPRI NGS LOOP ROAD

SENATOR GARY W LKEN, sponsor of SCR 1, explained the purpose of
SCR 1 is to consider road construction projects in the State of
Al aska. It originally focused on a road connection between two
hot springs in Interior Al aska. The Senate State Affairs added
three additional roads and its commttee substitute (CS) 1is
before the Senate Transportation Commttee. Senator WIken
endorsed the addition of roads to the resolution.

SENATOR WLKEN referred to a map of the proposed Hot Springs
Loop Road. Circle Hot Springs is on a spur road off the Steese
H ghway 130 mles from Fairbanks. Chena Hot Springs is 60 mles
from Fairbanks on the Chena Hot Springs Road. The 50 to 60
mles “as the crow flies” between Chena Hot Springs and Crcle
Hot Springs crosses the Fairbanks North Star Borough and Steese
Wl derness Area, an area of rolling hills wth a valley
configuration conducive to road construction. Senator W/ ken
said the Hot Springs Loop Road would benefit the residents of
Fai rbanks and visitors by allowi ng access to the hot springs in
a loop. The road would provide access to resources and aid in
t he devel opnent of Al aska.

The Senate State Affairs Commttee anended SCR 1 to include the
addition of three potential roads that would benefit residents,
visitors and industry:

e Bradfield Canal Road connecting Southeast Al aska to British

Col unbi a
* Knik Arm Crossing in Anchorage
e Iliama Bay to Pile Bay

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2003



The SCR 1 packet contains the resolution as anended by the
Senate State Affairs Commttee, the sponsor statenent, a letter
of support from the Fairbanks Chanber of Comrerce, a Fairbanks
Daily News Mner editorial dated February 16, 2003 and the
attached zero fiscal note.

SENATOR OLSON asked the type of |andownership along the Hot
Springs Loop Road.

SENATOR W LKEN said he did not know but it is mxed. The Steese
Wl derness Area is state |and. This corridor was first drawn
around 1982 and there is a search underway for the information
gathered at that tine.

SENATOR OLSON asked the width of the corridor.

SENATOR W LKEN said he did not know but said he encourages the
addition of roads that will provide econom c devel opnent.

MR. MERRILL HAKALA, Fairbanks resident, stated he was 100
percent against a road between Chena Hot Springs and Crcle Hot
Spri ngs. It would destroy a lot of wlderness country and the
connection is not needed. He added that people with renote
sites accessible by snow nmachine would be happy to see the road
built.

MR. HAKALA said the funds could be better spent in other places.
He proposed the foll ow ng projects.

* The planned road connection to Ranpart.
* Installation of a public boat |anding at Ranpart.
e Installation of a public boat |anding at Circle.

* Rebuild and straighten the road from Birch Creek Bridge to
Crcle. Money was designated for this project in 1989 but
the Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities
(DOTPF) transferred those funds el sewhere.

* Rebuild the road from Central to Crcle to make it a safer
r oad.

e Build aroad 1 mle north of and parallel to the Chena Hot
Springs Road. This 20 to 25 mle long road should have
connections to Chena Hot Springs Road. This property could
then be subdivided and would greatly enhance the Fairbanks
ar ea.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2003



MR, JOHN BROWN, field representative, Operating Engi neers Loca
302, said he was present on another matter but was in favor of
buil ding roads as they are a foundation for the Al askan econony.
He stated:

| leave it up to the Legislature to prioritize that
and | think we need a lot of input on this particular
project but any kind of infrastructure helps our
econony in the long termand |I'm sure this one would
t 00.

MR. RALPH SWARTHOUT, Regional Director, DOTPF Northern Region,
stated support for the construction of the Hot Springs Loop Road
because it would bring significant tourism recreational and
econom ¢ devel opnent opportunities to the Fairbanks area. He
added:

There seens to be a lot of issues with the Steese
White Mountain Recreational Area, the Birch Creek WId

and Scenic corridor - who owns the land, what is its
geo-technical conditions, how would a road be sited
her e. If we do a reconnai ssance type study, it would

take about a year to do, we could look at all of these
probl ens or perhaps problens in the future and cone up
with sone alternate solutions and make a decision on
whether it would be wse to proceed or not. So that
is ny suggestion to the commssioner and | am
supportive at this tine on this road.

SENATOR OLSON asked if M. Swarthout had |ooked at this from
DOTPF s st andpoi nt. He asked how he saw the construction of
this road conpeting with dollars for maintenance of other roads.
Senator O son added that DOTPF has not been nmintaining the
roads in his district.

MR, SWARTHOUT perceived this road as a capital fund project that

could conpete priority-wise wth other projects. DOTPF’ s
mai nt enance and operations activities are funded out of the
general fund budget. The maintenance dollars are different from

capital dollars.

SENATOR (OLSON understood the difference between the operating
and capital budgets. He said his question was how does DOTPF
expect to maintain this road after it has been built when other
roads | ack mai ntenance.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 18, 2003



MR, SWARTHOUT said he hoped the Legislature would support both a
new roadway and the operation costs. He added he had | ong been a
proponent for tying nmaintenance costs to capital projects and
said, “If they are not going to maintain them don’t build
them”

MR,  PAUL NATHANIEL, First Chief, Circle Village Council,
explained the Circle Village Council position on the road
proj ect between Chena Hot Springs and G rcle Hot Springs. When
sonething inportant occurs, |ike the Yukon Quest |International
Dog Race or a visit from the Governor, the Steese H ghway is
mai nt ai ned. O herwi se, the highway has not been naintained
through the winter for the past four or five years. The 35
mles fromCircle to Central is rough and hard on vehicles. M.
Nat hani el suggested those funds should be spent to maintain,
redesi gn, straighten and reconstruct the highway between Circle
and Central. [Parts  of M. Nat haniel’s testinmony were
i ndi scerni ble due to poor transm ssion.]

CHAIR CONDERY said SCR 1 would be scrutinized as it noves
through Senate and House Commttees. He thought Governor
Mur kowski had appoi nted new people to DOTPF and attitudes wll
change fromwhat they were in the past.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSCR 1(STA) from commttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
note. Wthout objection, the notion carried.

SB 54- OVERTI ME_PAY FOR Al RLI NE EMPLOYEES

SENATOR COLSON presented the foll ow ng sponsor statenent.

I introduced SB 54 to bring certainty to the
interpretation of existing federal and state wage and
hour statutes as they pertain to paynent of overtine
in the air transportation industry. Because of the
uni queness of their working conditions, flight crews
have been considered professionals that are exenpt
from the standard 8-hour workday; 40 hour week and
associ at ed overtinme pay requirenents [ AS
23.10.055(9)]. In conjunction with the maxi nmum flight
hours requirenents set by the Federal Avi ati on
Adm nistration [FAA], these exenptions, at both the
state and federal |evel, have allowed the industry to
structure wage and hour schedules best suited to the
work requirenments of their flight crew personnel.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 18, 2003



Several Al aska court decisions have raised a question
about the correct application of state wage and hour
laws and the application of overtine exenptions.
I ndeed, the confusion has stinulated other court
chal | enges.

SB 54 explicitly adds flight crews to the list of
occupations and enploynent situations that are exenpt
from Alaska’ s overtine wage and hour requirenents.

The bill cites the provisions of the federal Railway
Labor Act that governs air carriers in order to
provi de consi st ency bet ween f eder al and state

applications of the exenption.

CHAIR CONDERY asked if these flight crews are considered
pr of essi onal .

SENATOR OLSON explained flight crews at this point are not
|isted as professionals however their interpretation in the past
has been that they are professionals because of the uniqueness
of their working conditions. The attorney general’s |ong-
standing opinion has been that they are professionals. SB 54
specifically lists flight crews as professionals so there w|l
be no question.

SENATOR OLSON nmoved SB 54 from commttee wth individua
reconmendati ons. There being no objection, the notion carried.

2:02 p.m

CHAIR COADERY announced that Senat or Lincoln joined the
committee.

SB  40- CONSTRUCTI ON_ OF HI GHWAYS BY DOTPF

MR. RICHARD SCHM TZ, staff to Chair Cowdery, introduced SB 40.
He told nenbers that the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOTPF) uses force accounts for sole source
contracts. These are wusually snmall contracts and enable the
work to be done by tenporary state enployees. QO her state
departnments occasionally use force accounts for projects costing
smal | amounts.

SB 40 would insure that the conpetitive bid process be used for
state road projects. Conpetitive bidding allows transparency and
provi des the | owest and best bids. Force accounts could be used
for projects under $250,000 while projects above $250,000 woul d

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 18, 2003



be conpetitively bid. An advantage of the conpetitive bid
process is that Davis-Bacon wage determnations are paid; this
is the set union wage scale. Under the force account system
tenporary state enpl oyees do not necessarily receive Davis-Bacon
wages.

CHAI R CONDERY clarified that if sonething was overlooked in the
initial bid, a force account can be used to take care of the
unforeseen problem rather than shut down the project. Force
accounts are a necessary tool in the construction business but
t hey have been abused in the past. He thought SB 40 was needed
to stop the abuse.

CHAIR CONDERY said both rural and urban |abor on contract or
force account should be paid the sanme Davis-Bacon wages. Thi s
| egi sl ati on had support from nost |abor unions |ast year but the
bill was killed in the House.

SENATOR OLSON said last year the bill started with a $250, 000
limt but was changed to a $1 mllion limt as it progressed
through the |egislative process. He asked why SB 40 went back
to the $250,000 limt.

CHAIR CONDERY said, “The bill didn't pass so we're going to
start at the sane place.” He said he has no control of the
limt when the bill reaches the Finance Commttee.

SENATOR LINCOLN said Chair Cowdery’'s aide told her the neeting
started at 2:00 p.m and that she had not been infornmed the
neeting was starting at 1:30 p.m She had prepared to talk
about SCR 1 as it involves her district. She asked if Chair
Cowdery would allow the individual on line from Circle to be
heard after the commttee finished with SB 40.

CHAI R CONDERY sai d he woul d extend that courtesy.
SENATOR LI NCOLN appreci ated that very nuch.

CHAI R CONDERY apol ogi zed that she was not notified of the tine
change. He thought everyone had been notifi ed.

VR. SCHMTZ said he was responsible for the lack of
notification.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 18, 2003



SENATOR LI NCOLN addressed SB 40 and said the Rural Construction
Wrk Goup had several neetings and nade a nunber of
reconmendations as a result of the admnistrative order (AO
dated Cctober 1, 2002. She wanted to hear from that group
because the nenbers represent a very broad group from across
Al aska.

CHAI R CONDERY said the work group nenbers had been notified of
t he heari ng.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if anyone was present to testify for the
Rural Construction Wrk G oup.

CHAI R CONDERY t hought there was soneone present.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she would postpone her questions because
the Rural Construction Wrrk Goup would likely cover a nunber of
t he points she planned to rai se.

MR, KEVIN RITCH E, Al aska Muinicipal League, apol ogized for not
having submtted a letter but said one would follow He
expl ai ned that concerns brought a broad group of people together
over the summer who had a great deal of discussion. Two obvious
concerns were apparent:

* The level of wages, fairness and conpetitiveness on the
part of contractors.

e The ability to hire and train l|local people to a greater
extent and the cost of getting the work done on the | ocal
si de.

The gr oup i ncl uded contractors, | abor representatives,
muni ci palities and state agency representatives and resulted in
Adm ni strative Order 199 (AO 199). M. Ritchie felt AO 199 is a
conprom se that addresses ways to stop abuse, overtinme and new
wage rates. Those abuses are identified as the purpose for SB
40. He suggested finding out if AO 199 is being inplenented and
how it mght reflect on the need for SB 40.

CHAI R COADERY di sclosed this issue was brought to his attention
when a $3.5 million road project in Saint Mary’'s went out to bid
and was then wthdrawn a couple of vyears ago. Fairbanks
contractors conplained because they wanted to bid on the job
DOTPF chose to hire people as state enployees, train them and
build the road with state equipnment rather that conform to
Davi s- Bacon Act wages. He was told by DOIPF the road is
excel l ent, however SB 40 is needed to stop this type of abuse.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 18, 2003



Projects costing over $250,000 should go through the conpetitive
bi d process.

SENATOR OLSON said Saint Mary's is in his district. He reported

that not only is the road excellent, it came in under budget
thanks to city nmnager Walton Smth, project engineer Dave
Schaffer, and the rest of the group working on it. It was a

very good experi ence.

CHAI R CONDERY said he had not been out to see the road but had
asked for an audit.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if M. Ritchie was a nenber of the Rura
Construction Wrk G oup.

MR. RITCH E responded that he was.

SENATOR LINCOLN said representatives of Native corporations,
nonprofit organizations, private contractors, organized | abor,
affected state agencies, the Association of Village Council
Presidents (AVCP), Kawerak, the Tanana Chiefs Conference, Inc.
(TCC), and the Bering Straits Native Corporation (BSNC) were al
represented in the group. She understood the group nade a nunber
or recommendations that AO 199 closely follows. She asked, in
representing the Alaska Muinicipal League, whether M. Ritchie
m ght have wanted to change anything in AO 99 in hindsight.

2:16 p.m

MR. RITCH E answered the process was a good one and, as far as
maki ng maj or changes, nenbers cane to a good conpromse. It
creates a nore progressive wage rate for people hired through a
force account; they are hired at essentially Davis-Bacon
training wages, which is a good thing. Part of the group’s
phil osophy was to allow the use of force accounts for anounts
over $250,000 but to create a conpetitive situation between
force accounts and contracting. If wages approximting Davis-
Bacon wages are paid, then the choice can be nmade on a
conpletely conpetitive basis and the |aborers win either way.
Preserving the concept of the force account is really inportant
in sone rural areas. He said there mght be a nunber above which
force accounts should not be used but $250,000 may be |ow
because of the cost of doing business.

MR RTCHE felt it nmade sense for the new admnistration to

review AO 199 and see how it would recomrend its inplenmentation
He noted, “Just for the record, our public works and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 18, 2003



infrastructure conmttee did review the bill recently and did
reconmend that in its present formto not support the bill, just
t he Muni ci pal League al one.”

MR. RITCH E added the Associated General Contractors (AGC) was
al so a menber of the working group.

CHAIR CONDERY noted he was anxious to talk to the new
adm nistration on this issue.

MR, JOHN BROWN, field representative, Operating Engineers Loca
302, pointed out that Alaska s policy on public construction has
been to use the bid process, which makes sure the work is done
in an efficient manner. The people in rural Alaska should
recei ve Davis Bacon wages. He said he did not believe SB 40
would affect the ability of rural people to do force account
wor K. He explained SB 40 |limts DOTPF to the conpetitive bid
process to nake sure innovative nethods and the best current
practices are used.

CHAIR CONDERY said when he was in the contracting business he
worked in rural Alaska and found it beneficial to hire as nany
| ocal people as possible because he didn't have to pay
transportation, per diem or housing. Wen building an airport,
preci se grades were needed and workers had to be inported that
could cut the grade required by the specifications. H's
construction conpany paid everyone Davis-Bacon wages. He hired
about 60 people on one project in Kotlik and had about everyone
who wanted to, work on the project.

MR. BROMWN encouraged Senator Lincoln and Senator O son to talk
to the people in Arctic Village who just finished a project.
The Operating Engineers trained people from the |ocal comunity
and the project was force account work.

M5. EDEN LARSEN, Executive Director, Associated Builders and
Contractors, Inc. (ABC Alaska), stated ABC Al aska supports SB
40. The state should not be in conpetition with the private
sector. ABC contractors working in rural Al aska are | ooking for
trained people who can work on projects. The issue is largely
one of training rather than wages. Contractors are required to
pay a prevailing wage hiring locally wherever possible provides
a conpetitive advant age.

She said it is interesting to see that AO 199 brings the whole

force account argunment full circle. Initially the argunment was
that force accounting was nore cost effective because |ocal

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 18, 2003



people could be hired the prevailing wage would not have to be
paid. That argunent is wused to avoid federal open and
conpetitive bid requirenents. AO 199 now inposes a prevailing
wage rate, which brings the argunment full circle but does not
elimnate conpetition with the private sector or the people
directly perform ng the work.

M5. JUDY MARTINSON, Northcoast Construction, said Northcoast
Construction is a general contracting conpany that works in
northwest Alaska villages and has exclusively hired |oca
wor kf orces for the past 22 years. State DOTPF forces have eroded
Nort hcoast Construction’s work. The Saint Mary's project was not
put out to bid but was done by DOTPF and the costs are unknown.
DOTPF paid |less than the Davis-Bacon wages that contractors are
required to pay and include in their bids. There is little work
in Northwest Al aska and state DOTPF forces were working when
private enterprise was not. Northcoast Construction is making
paynments for equipnent that sits idle and gross revenues have
gone froma high of $2.5 mllion down to about $20,000 per year.
They are selling equipnent and letting |local people go while
DOTPF is gearing up with nore equipnment and nore forces. The
state and city forces are getting stronger and the private
sector is being put out of business. She concluded, “W are
| ooking at going to war to preserve our denocracy.” Northcoast
Construction supports SB 40 to stop this problem

TAPE 03-02, SIDE B
2:30 p.m

CHAI R CONDERY asked Ms. Martinson the snmllest dollar anmpbunt and
[ pay] range that Northcoast Construction had ever conpetitively
bid on a job.

MS. MARTI NSON answered Northcoast has bid jobs from $1000 to $3
mllion.

CHAIR CONDERY asked if Northcoast was required to post a bond
for the |arger jobs.

M5. MARTINSON said it was.
CHAI R CONDERY asked if smaller jobs were exenpt from bondi ng.
M5. MARTI NSON said sonme projects require bonds and sonme do not,

it depends on the funding. Northcoast had a snmall maintenance
project that was bonded. Northcoast hires and trains |oca

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 18, 2003



peopl e and uses anywhere from 80 to 100 percent |ocal forces for
a project.

SENATOR OLSON asked her to nention sone of the places where
Nor t hcoast had done construction projects.

M5. MARTINSON said Northcoast had been to just about every
village out in Northwest Alaska, Teller, Brevig, Savoonga,
Ganbl e, Unal akl eet, Kiwalik, Nonme, and Wales (three additional
villages were listed that were indiscernible).

SENATOR LI NCOLN appreciated Ms. Martinson's testinony and the
fact Northcoast Construction hires all [|ocal people. Senat or
Lincoln said she came froma very small conmunity and represents
129 communi ti es. Local people are concerned that |ocals do not

receive the work when a job is put out to bid. An Anchor age
contractor brought all of his enployees, food, mterials and
equi pnent to Ranpart. Ranpart worked hard to get the project

but received absolutely no benefits in ternms of jobs. She added
that many conpanies do not follow the local hire policy. Loca
peopl e are watching jobs |eave the conmmunity and, in sone cases,
| eave the state.

M5. MARTINSON said after living in Nonme for 30 years they are
conpassionate and love the villages and village people. Life is
very hard; wthout funds coming in it is hard to eat. She
suggested the loss of jobs could be elimnated of a specific
nunber of hours required for apprentices could be placed in the
bi ddi ng process. People need to be trained on the job and the
state participates and helps with that through the conpetitive
bi ddi ng process and through the union apprenticeship program

Nort hcoast has had a project agreenent with the union. The
union cane in and helped to train people, and nmade sure the
peopl e were happy. She thought the bidding process needs nore
teeth so that village people are acconmodat ed.

CHAI R CONDERY said he hired as nmany |ocals as possible because
it was nore profitable. Qualified people are needed to run the
equi pnent to neet specifications when close tolerances are
required and these people have to be brought in. He hired
|l ocal s on erosion control contracts that were hard working who
caught on fast and worked up to 12 hours per day. Contractors
will hire locally if they can save noney.

CHAI R CONDERY said Frank Richards and Chris Kepler are on line
in Anchorage to answer questions.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- February 18, 2003



VR. DENNI S  POSHARD, Legi sl ative Liaison/Speci al Assi st ant,
DOTPF, said Mark O Brien, Chief Contracts Oficer, is present to
hel p answer questions because this is a conpl ex subject.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if he had tal ked to the new heads of DOTPF

MR. POSHARD said they were introduced while waiting for this
hearing to start and Conm ssioner Barton had been acting
Comm ssioner for sonme tinme. He stated DOTPF has no position on
SB 40 and expl ai ned:

W are currently reviewing Adm nistrative Oder 199
and this administration is trying to determne their
approach to dealing with the issue of force account.
First though, | would like to clarify a few things

One thing, | think that it’s really inportant to note
up front, is we agree that we ought not be in
conpetition with the private sector. | nmean we believe
the private sector is a partner with us to do the job
that we need to do to inprove transportation in
Al aska. That’s why over 97 percent of our current, you
know, construction programends up getting bid out.

CHAIR COADERY asked how much of the remaining 3 percent
represents in dollars.

MR. POSHARD said a little less than 3 percent was spent by force
account in 2002, which totaled about $11.2 mllion.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if that was in all areas of Al aska.
MR. POSHARD said yes. The lion's share of force account funding

was for projects that departnent maintenance crews did for line
item projects in the capital budget. Sonme of those projects

include preventative naintenance on roads, road surface
treatnents, crack sealing and bridge repair. The total anount
was $11.2 nillion; about 2.2 percent of the total construction

programin 2002. That included the projects DOTPF gave to other
| ocal agencies such as the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) or
other state agencies. SB 40 is directed at that 2.2 percent and
not the $350 to $400 mllion that is contracted every year.
DOTPF agrees it should not be in conpetition wth the private
sector and that is why it contracts nost of the work that is
done.

CHAI R CONDERY asked t he reason force accounts began.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- February 18, 2003



MR. POSHARD said the answer depends on the type of force
account . DOTPF sonetinmes force accounts roads to |ocal
governnents or agencies such as the BIA and the Indian Health
Service (IHS) at their request.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if DOTPF ever uses force account when an
unforeseen situation arises during a project; for instance,
hydr ocarbons were found and were not included in the bid but
DOTPF does not want to stop the job.

MR. POSHARD said he thought Chair Cowdery was referring to a
change order. If the contractor is on-site doing the work and
an unforeseen situation is discovered that calls for some change
to the bid specifications, DOIPF issues what is called a change
order. DOTPF negotiates directly with the contractor to go ahead
and conplete the additional work above and beyond the original
specifications in the bid.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if that is the sane as a force account.

MR. POSHARD asked Mark O Brien, who reviews all the *“best
interest findings” and determ nes whether or not force account
projects can be done, to explain force account because.

MR. MARK O BRIEN, Chief Contracts O ficer, DOIPF, explained that
two different definitions of force accounting cause confusion.
He tol d menbers:

One is force account, which is wusually called ‘tine
and materials’ and that’s where a contractor is paid

on a tinme and materials basis. The description that
Dennis gave of the change order could well be that
that change order would be done on tine and materials
[ basis] so they would call that force account. But ,

what the statute is looking at in this definition of
force account is where the departnent uses its own
forces to acconplish the work, so it’'s different.
Those are the different definitions for force account.

CHAI R CONDERY asked how DOTPF budgeted for force accounting.

MR. O BRIEN asked if he was referring to a force account for the
contractor under a change order.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if they had a budget for unforeseen probl ens
and asked if that was the same as force account.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- February 18, 2003



MR. POSHARD said that is not the same type of force account SB
40 is referring to. DOIPF builds contingency funds into projects
and Chair Cowdery was referring to a force account due to a
change order. The anount is not the sane on every project and
depends on the level of certainty and confort wth the
information the specifications were based on. Sonetines it is as
much as 10 percent and sonetines it is |ess.

CHAI R CONDERY said an exanple would be when a contract provides
so nmuch per ton for unusable excavated material to be haul ed off
and then an unexpected peat bog is encountered and has to be
renoved at additional cost. He asked if the unit price in the
original bid was standard for the additional pay to the
contractor.

MR OBRIEN said that is correct. If it was sinply an overrun
in quantities for which there were unit prices then the unit
prices would continue to apply and DOTPF would pay for the tota
guantities actually noved.

CHAI R CONDERY said if, in fact, the peat bog proved to be nore
difficult to renove than the original unit price, a new price
woul d be negoti at ed.

MR OBRIEN said yes, equitable adjustnment is allowed under
contract for circunstances where the contract did not
contenplate the series of events di scovered on the project.

SENATOR WAGONER asked when the state highway naintenance is
involved in a force account job and state equipnent is used
agai nst an account, whether that equipnent is billed against the
account by an hourly charge.

MR. FRANK RI CHARDS, Statew de Mintenance Engi neer, DOIPF, said
the question is how state equipnent is admnistered under the
force account project done by DOTPF forces. The Federal H ghway
Adm nistration allows DOIPF to build a federal usage rate for
the cost of equipnment usage it is able to charge to the project.
Use rates and costs for the state equipnent fleet is devel oped
on an annual basis. The state/federal usage rate goes through a
federal audit and determnes that the cost associated and
charged to the projects are. As the equipnment is used, it is
bei ng charged at that rate to the project.

SENATOR WAGONER asked where those funds revert to and what
account do they go into.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- February 18, 2003



MR. RICHARDS said under a force account the project is set up
with a specific description; the personnel services and
equi pnent costs are charged directly to the project.

MR. POSHARD asked if the question was do the funds that go
towards equi pnment sonehow go back into the highway capital
wor ki ng fund and offset the annual cost for that equipnent in a
capital force account project.

SENATOR WAGONER said yes, or an equipnent maintenance fund of
sonme Ki nd. He said otherw se, the equipnment is being worn out
for not hi ng.

MR. POSHARD said essentially the answer is yes. He expl ai ned:

When we purchase a piece of equipnent, we do that
through the state equipnent fleet. W have set up by
statute what’s called the H ghway Capital Wrking Fund
and it's a separate fund that’s wused to acquire
equi pnent . And your lease rates are established in
such a way that they take into account the mai ntenance
of that equipnment and the capital acquisition of new
equi pnent at sone foreseen point in the future. And
so, the capital funding that goes to pay for equipnent
during the tinme it’'s being used on that project,
that’s that nuch less general fund that we would be
using to pay for that equipnent on an annual basis

Does that nmake sense or answer your question?

SENATOR WAGONER said it did if DOTPF projects how much it is
going to have from that type of incone and puts that into the
budget .

CHAI R CONDERY asked if a $75 thousand engine blew up in a grader
on the Saint Mary's project, how the cost of replacenent would
fit in the nmai ntenance budget.

MR. POSHARD said DOTPF used alnobst no state equipnent on the
Saint Mary’s project. The equi pnment was |eased from the | ocal
gover nnment .

CHAI R CONDERY asked if DOTPF used any state equi pnent.

MR. POSHARD said they m ght have used a piece or two.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- February 18, 2003



CHAI R CONDERY asked how the replacenent cost of a blown engine
was accounted for.

MR. SWARTHOUT, Regional Director of the Northern Region, DOTPF,
expl ained alnost all of the equipnment used on the Saint Mary’s
project was |leased fromthe Gty of Saint Mary’s. The state had
a few pieces of equipnent; a roller and a dunp truck were used
fromtime to tine. He answered the question as foll ows:

Some of that would depend on what the cause of that
engi ne being blown was. If it was normal wear and
tear, there was sone problem wth the engine, we'd go
back to the nmanufacturer, perhaps where we' d absorb
that out of the H ghway W rking Capital Fund which
would drive the rates up in the future for that piece
of equi pnent. If it was an operator problem where he
over revved the engine or we’'ve run it out of water,
the H ghway Wrking Capital Fund would not pay for
that, it would not conme out of the project. | mean
basically it would conme out of our general fund budget
to repair that equipnent.

MR. POSHARD said the Saint Mary’s project is conplete and the
total cost was $2.47 nmillion.

CHAI R CONDERY asked for a breakdown of those costs. He said he
had requested an audit earlier.

VR. POSHARD said DOTPF would be happy to provide that
information. He added this bill would affect a few types of
force account projects:

e Projects t hat DOTPF  force accounts t hr ough | ocal
governnents or agency partners like the BIA or Indian
Heal th Servi ce.

* The Saint Mary’'s type project, which is essentially a force
account project that DOTPF did. The departnent sent its
construction managers to Saint Mary's and hired |ocal
tenporary state enpl oyees to conplete that work.

CHAIR CONDERY interjected and asked if the enpl oyees worked for
the state prior to the project.

MR. POSHARD said not to his know edge. He conti nued:

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- February 18, 2003



e The third type is the naintenance work normally done every
year with the DOIPF capital program The nmai nt enance
general fund budget has been cut over the years. DOTPF
managed to make up a lot of the difference by establishing
sone types of maintenance activities that can use DOIPF
mai nt enance enpl oyees |i ke pavenent preservation and safety
ki nds of issues.

MR. POSHARD cl arified that DOTPF mai ntenance forces do a portion
of the capital budget line item projects, such as preventive
mai nt enance, road surface treatnent and bridge repair. Every
spring or early sunmer a nunber of nmaintenance enployees will
shift over to a capital project. They are no |onger plow ng
snow, they are out crack sealing, repairing bridges or doing
what ever their specialty is. They work throughout the sunmer
and in the fall get converted to the general fund naintenance
budget .

DOTPF is concerned that sonme of those activities could not
continue if this bill passes. Converting state enployees and
state nmintenance enployees to work on capital projects for the
sumer saves a portion of DOIPF s general fund for personnel
services that can be used for overtinme in the winter for plow ng
snow and weather related activities. If DOTPF is unable to do
that, a managenent decision nust be nmade to either stop sone
mai nt enance activity, bid it out to the private sector, lay off
enpl oyees to nmaintain that small cushion of overtime or maintain
t hose enployees and have less tine to deal wth weather events
in the winter.

CHAIR COWNDERY asked if DOTPF had a detailed description of
mai nt enance ver sus constructi on work.

MR. POSHARD said there is a statutory definition of naintenance
and construction work.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if DOTPF owns machines to | ay down asphalt.

MR. RI CHARDS answered DOTPF contracts out for the lay down of
asphalt. DOTPF does not own a |ay down nachi ne.

MR. POSHARD reiterated that DOTPF does not have a position on SB
40 but has concern about the nanagenent decisions DOTPF nust
face should the bill pass. It takes away flexibility to plan
for unexpected weather events and stretches its general fund
mai nt enance budget a little further.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 20- February 18, 2003



SENATOR COLSON said the difficulty he sees is the polarization
between the private sector and the state through force account.
This bill uses the ampount of the project as the dividing line to
try and separate the two. The United States was built on the
capitalistic system and a dislike of seeing public noneys used
agai nst people fromthe private sector. He asked if M. Poshard
could see any other nmechanism or way that would nmake it |ess of
a divisive issue.

MR. POSHARD said that was a difficult question to answer.
Different ideas have been tossed around but DOTPF has no
position on the ideas. He expl ai ned:

But ot her approaches could be maybe limting the force
account work that’'s done by the departnent to the work

that’s done with the existing state forces. So it
woul d prevent maybe us from going out and hiring new
state enployees to do that work. | think that m ght

give us anyway the ability to continue doing some of
the budget shifting that we do to nmanage the
mai nt enances as effectively as possible. It mght
maybe take away the ability of the departnment to do a
Saint Mary’'s type project, which is really the one
that seens to have been the canel’s nose under the
tent for the Associated Ceneral Contractors and sone
of the other agencies or organi zations out there.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if she understood correctly that three
percent of the overall budget was spent on construction and
mai nt enance force account projects.

MR. POSHARD answered that is correct. Less than three percent
of DOTPF s total capital construction program actually is force
accounti ng.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how nmuch of the three percent was used for
Bl A and I ndian Health Service projects.

MR. POSHARD said he did not have that information with him but
it could be provided.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked for an estimate.
MR OBRIEN answered that it is a very small portion of the

anount |1 sted. In 2002, with a total amount of $11 mllion,
$8.8 mllion plus another $500 thousand were spent on

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -21- February 18, 2003



mai nt enance type activities. The other agencies totaled just
over $1 million of the $11 mllion.

SENATOR LI NCOLN sai d ten percent.

MR. O BRIEN answered ten percent of the anmount that was force
account ed.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she would appreciate having the breakdown.
She said they were talking about a very mniml anount when
tal ki ng about force accounting, three percent.

CHAI R CONDERY said $11 mllion.

SENATOR LINCOLN said 2.2 percent of the total capital budget.

It is very small in those ternms and inportant in terns of the
benefits the |ocal people derive. She thought they had to | ook
at the overall big picture. “l guess I'm a little puzzled by
the ‘no position on the bill’ because isn't this the same bill

that we had | ast year with the exception of the anmount?”

MR. POSHARD said this is essentially the sanme bill as it was
introduced last year and the previous admnistration pretty
strongly opposed the |egislation. This admnistration is

reviewi ng AO 199, which was the result of the Rural Construction
Wirking Group and has yet to conclude exactly how it is going to
approach the force account issue.

SENATOR LI NCOLN read a statement from former Governor Knowl es in
regard to AO 199:

After the various agencies and those groups involved
in enployment and training for rural construction
shall provide the Governor with a joint report one
year from the effective date of this order that
evaluates the results to date of this order and shall
report annually thereafter.

She asked what that nmeant now with the new adm nistration com ng
on and | ooki ng at AO 199.

3:05 p.m
MR. POSHARD said he was not sure exactly how the adm nistration

woul d approach that |anguage and not sure what that | anguage
nmeant initially because he had not participated in the process.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -22- February 18, 2003



M. OBrien participated and could possibly explain what that
| anguage neant and what was i nt ended.

SENATOR LINCOLN said since M. OBrien participated she had
anot her question. The Departnent of Labor was in fact
represented on the Rural Construction Wrking Goup and the
recommendations of that group resulted in AO 199. She asked if
that is correct.

MR OBRIEN said that is correct.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked, “Wat do you now find offensive or that
you would report back to a new administration that they should
change?”

MR OBRIEN said he was not sure it is an issue of sonething
bei ng of f ensive. He thought at that point, the working group
did not know how the current admnistration would handle the
particular requirements of AO 199. Since it is a new
admnistrative order, they do not know how the reporting
requi renents are going to be handl ed.

CHAI R COANDERY said he intended to hold the bill in conmttee and
talk about it with the new conm ssioners in DOIPF and perhaps
they will be present at the next hearing.

MR. RICHARDS said the cost of equipnent is about 15 percent of
that 2.2 percent and the remainder of the noney is spent in the
private sector contracting for aggregate, materials and rented
equi pnent . This noney does not all go to the state; it is
spread out anong the private sector.

CHAI R CONDERY said he appreciated that but was concerned about
how the state is doing it.

M5. MARTINSON said a basic denocratic principle is that the
public should not conpete with the private sector. The Gty of
Saint Mary’'s is a public organization that bought the equipnent
for the project and the state paid the city for that equipnent.
The anmount of 3 percent mght seem small but it has a big

i npact .

CHAI R COANDERY announced his intent to hold SB 40 until he has an
opportunity to neet and discuss it with the new people in DOTPF.

SB_ 53-REVOKE DRIVER' S LI C. FOR FATAL ACCI DENT

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -23- February 18, 2003



SENATOR SCOTT OGAN, sponsor of SB 53, explained he introduced
simlar legislation about four years ago. Former Gover nor
Know es introduced the sane legislation tw years ago, which
died in the last nonents of the legislature |ast year so he is
rei ntroduci ng the neasure. He expl ai ned:

What notivated ne to do this was literally having to
take nmy knife and dig the dirt out from underneath ny
fingernails from burying a couple of ny friends’ Kkids.
And two kids were killed in the sanme car weck. They
were killed by a young man who was basically charged
with a traffic violation of speeding. The young man
received a very light sentence, just a few points off
his drivers license and a few hundred dollar fine and
sone community service. And it was the maxi num that
the judge could give and the judge actually apol ogi zed
to the parents for not being able to do nore. Si nce
then he was involved in another vehicle accident that,
I’m not sure of the exact tickets of that accident,
but |’ve been told that individual was involved in an
accident that killed two nore kids and had he lost a
| i cense maybe that m ght not have happened.

Wen we first introduced the bill, six years ago |
think it was, we had one wonan that testified that a
person ran a red light in Anchorage, a wonan ran a red
light and killed her daughter, she got a $50 fine.
And | think the famlies of these victins of accidents
feel that justice is not being served. There’s
certainly civil recourse that they could take to, the
one famly that Ilost the two boys, both famlies

decided not to litigate in civil court. They | ust
felt it wasn't sonething they wanted to do but they
would have liked to have had the young man held
account abl e. There was another accident recently,

earlier this wnter, where tw people died, and a
young gal was driving, another young person....

Situations where there is alcohol i nvol ved or
sonething I|ike that they <can be charged wth
mansl aughter or face sone crimnal charges. R ght now
the way our law is witten, you get a traffic ticket
you get a slap on the wist and your on to, back to
your bad driving habits. So anyway, this bil
attenpts to clarify that.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 24- February 18, 2003



There are a lot of technical 1issues here, |egal
technical issues, | think Annie Carpeneti is here to
answer questions if anybody has sonme on those. But
basically this is a policy change that the Al aska
Legislature is saying: if you re not paying attention

you' re talking on your cell phone, you run a red
light, you run a stop sign, you speed, vyou Kkill
sonebody, you know it’s going to be a little bit nore
than just a traffic ticket. | think the value of
human life is worth nore than a traffic ticket in
t hose cases.

M5. NANCY CAMPBELL infornmed the conmittee her son was killed in
t he acci dent Senator Ogan spoke about. A nunber of |awers were
i nvol ved because six teenagers were in the car. Her | awyer
tried to pursue a msdenmeanor conviction but Alaska |aws are
witten with no ramfications for this type of accident because

the driver was not on drugs or alcohol. The case went to
traffic court and the judge apol ogi zed and said his hands were
tied. Wtnesses to the accident said the young man was

speedi ng, but because it was viewed through a rearview mrror
the testinony could not be considered. This man al so al nbst ran
into a couple and they cane to traffic court but were not
allowed to testify because of the way the laws are witten. The
young man was given 300 hours of conmmunity service. Two nonths
| ater, that young nman was involved in another accident in which
two nore teenagers were killed. She said to her know edge this
young man is still driving.

Ms. CAMPBELL and her husband support SB 53 and feel the
| egislation is appropriate. They have | obbied to change the |aw
in Alaska since 1994. The | ocal newspaper in Eureka, California
reported a non-fatal accident involving two teenagers. One
young man pulled up next to another and shot him in the face
with a squirt gun. The accident that followed involved injury
but was not fatal, however the driver’s |license was inmediately
revoked and a fine was inposed by the State of California. This
shows that the problemis the way Al aska |laws are witten

CHAI R CONDERY how Ms. Canpbell would place the responsibility if
a person was driving down the road in a residential area at 25
mles per hour and hit and killed a child who darted out from a
driveway on a tricycle.

M5. CAMPBELL said that is a different situation because the

child ran out into the road and the driver didn't see the child
com ng.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -25- February 18, 2003



TAPE 03-03, SIDE A
3:18 p. m

SENATOR OGAN explained if the person in Chair Cowdery’s scenario
didn't violate any traffic laws he or she would not be charged.
That type of case is a terrible thing but it is an accident and
nobody is really at fault.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she thought SB 53 was a fine bill. She
asked if the bill covers 4-wheel ers, 3-wheelers and snow
machi nes. She asked how a vehicle is defined.

SENATOR OGAN said he would like Annie Carpeneti to back him up
on the question but a traffic |aw nust be violated. Operating a
4-wheel er on a highway would be a violation of a traffic |aw

SENATOR LINCOLN said she was thinking of a situation where
sonebody in a village, driving erratically with a 4-wheeler and

not paying attention, caused a fatal accident. She asked if
this bill addresses that type of situation.

IVS. ANNE  CARPENETI , Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Cri m nal
Di vision, Departnent of Law, testified the departnment had worked
with Senator Ogan on SB 53. She said in answer to Senator
Lincoln’s question it would depend on the circunstances but it
could very well apply. The bill is limted; it requires a
citation for a traffic violation and a conviction on the
citation. Then it requires the judge to find by clear and

convincing evidence that the traffic violation was a significant
cause of the accident that killed a person. The scenario raised
by Chair Cowdery would not apply at all.

SENATOR LINCOLN presented an exanple that had occurred a year
earlier. A young man was working on a new snow machi ne and
could not get it going. He put a tool on the accelerator and
the snow machi ne took off and ran over and killed an individual.
She asked if the legislation would apply in that case.

M5. CARPENETI asked if he was cited for a traffic violation.
She said sonetinmes people get killed in accidents and it 1is
really nobody's fault. She said SB 53 addresses incidences
where a person hasn’'t acted in a crimnally negligent nmanner but
has violated a traffic law. Senator Lincoln’s exanple would
depend on the circunstances in the situation: where the snow
machi ne was, whether it was on a vehicular way, or whether the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 26- February 18, 2003



young man was cited for sone sort of traffic violation. She
said she woul d need nore infornmation.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said M. Carpeneti worked with the Senate
Judiciary Committee |ast year on changes to this |egislation.
He had reviewed the mnutes from last year and had a copy of

that bill. He noted Senator Ogan had said his starting point
was the last version of the bill and it appears to be except for
the omssion of an additional section in last year’s bill that

dealt with the definition of traffic | aws.

MS. CARPENETI pointed out the definition on page 3, line 7 was
in the prior iterations of the bill

SENATOR THERRI AULT said she was correct. The form of the bill
isjust alittle bit different.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to scenarios given by Chair Cowdery
that M. Carpeneti had said did not apply. The Judiciary
Comm ttee di scussed another scenario | ast year.

A nother picks up her two children, driving down the
road hits an icy spot, hits a telephone pole, kills
one of the children. There was sone testinony | ast
year that the trooper responding to the accident scene
is going to cite a cause for the accident, driving too
fast for the conditions. Now is that nother then
going to be subject to losing her |icense where she’s
al ready | ost her child?

MS. CARPENETI answered it would depend. |If the nother was cited
for driving too fast for the conditions and the judge concluded
that her behavior was a significant contributing factor to the
death, then losing her license is a possibility.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if such a situation would provide for a
| ot of prosecutorial discretion.

M5. CARPENETI said yes. The person has to be convicted of the
citation beyond a reasonable doubt. A person has a right to
court appointed counsel and a jury trial for the citation itself
and then the judge would have to be convinced by clear and
convincing evidence that the bad driving was a significant
contributing factor to the death. There are several steps al ong
the way that have to be nmet before the |license would be revoked
and it would be for the judge to determ ne. She thought that
was why the Senate Judiciary Conmittee added the clear and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -27- February 18, 2003



convi ncing evidence standard and that it would be a significant
factor in causing the death.

MS. CARPENETI explained beyond a reasonable doubt is a higher
st andar d. Clear and convincing is between preponderance of the
evidence and beyond a reasonable doubt but it is a high
st andar d.

SENATOR OLSON said last year’s bill included the reasonable
doubt standard; the standard in this bill has been changed to
cl ear and convincing evidence. He asked her why that change was
made.

M5. CARPENETI said she believes the citation has to be proven
beyond a reasonable doubt but said she could be mstaken and
woul d check. The citation nust be proven beyond a reasonable
doubt and, after the person is convicted of the traffic
violation, the court nust find by clear and convincing evidence
that the bad driving was the significant factor in causing the
deat h.

SENATOR OLSON st at ed:

As you look at this transgressing driver that was out
there causing all this mayhem and certainly the
fatalities we certainly enpathize with the famlies
that were affected. And | think, with all due respect
Senat or Qgan, your words as | renenber them on the
fl oor were that ‘You cannot |egislate commbn sense.’

He asked if the driver that caused the two accidents had a
driver’s license.

SENATOR OGAN said he did not recall naking that statenent and
added, “But you probably can’t |egislate combn sense, but you
can punish bad judgnent. And, you know we legislate norality
all the tine. That’s the nbst common thing we do.” He stated
as an exanple that when soneone three years older has sexual
relations with a child who is 15 years and 364 days old, that is
child nol estation but, the next day, when the child turns 16, it
is not. That is a noral judgnent call. He appl auded the
Campbells for not taking the driver to civil court, but they
felt justice was not served. This legislation would provide a
sense of justice. The Canpbell’s son and their friend s son
di ed and, because there was nothing on the books the judge could
use, a subsequent accident occurred and two other children died.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 28- February 18, 2003



This young man did not learn his lesson the first tine so there
has to be sone consequences for bad judgnent.

SENATOR COLSON said his heart goes out to the people that
suffered through the tragedy.

SENATOR COLSON referred to case 1 from the Actual Cases
Supporting SB 53 in which a man driving along G enn H ghway into
Anchorage one summer afternoon fell asleep at the wheel and
violated a traffic regulation by driving onto the bike path.

Hs car struck and killed a woman riding her bicycle. Senat or
O son said a fair nunber of the people even within this room
have at sonetinme fallen asleep in undue circunstances. He said

to put them in the sane category as the driver talked about
earlier is somewhat unfair.

SENATOR OGAN r esponded:

Wth all due respect, through the chair, Senator
A son, | guess you would say that it wouldn’'t be fair
for those people to sue that person. They woul d be
held liable in civil court as well.... You know life
isn't fair. W maeke judgnent calls all the time and
yea, |’ve fallen asleep, or you know caught nyself

falling asleep at the wheel before and |’ve been in a
car with sonebody that falls asleep wth their eyes
open.

He said he did not think it was unreasonable to have sone

ram fications. He said he told his kids a car is a 4 thousand
pound m ssile and do not ness around, driving is life and death
stuff. Unfortunate things happen to good people, sone good
peopl e nmke sone bad judgnments that kill people, and those

peopl e cannot be brought back. He asked if people should get
off with a $50 fine for running a red |ight. He did not think
Sso.

MS. CARPENETI said, in further response to Senator Therriault,

that in last year’s bill, the Senate Judiciary Comrttee gave
the court discretion to suspend the license for up to three
years under these limted circunstances. Up to that point,

suspensi on was mandatory for one year.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the current bill gives the court
t hat discretion.

MS. CARPENETI answered it does.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -29- February 18, 2003



SENATOR THERRI AULT said he renmenbered the discussion |ast year.
That discretion was added to recognize the person who is “hot-
roddi ng” and acting egregiously.

SENATOR THERRI AULT recounted a discussion |ast year on the issue

of license revocation. He noted that the police blotter in any
paper contains DWs (driving while intoxicated) that involve
people driving with revoked |icenses. He said he did not know

if the laws really inpact people’s behavior because people drive
Wi th suspended licenses anyway. A lot of people drive to and
fromwork wthout a license. People have to drive in this state
with the extrene tenperatures and di stances and no nmass transit.
He asked if Senator Ogan had given thought to what the penalty
is when people are caught driving with a revoked driver’s
| icense. He asked what the inpact would be on the Departnent of
Law and the public defenders.

SENATOR OGAN said the bill gives the judge discretion. He hoped,
in the case Senator O son nentioned where the wonan hit a patch
of ice and killed a child, the judge would take that into

consi derati on. The bill allows for a Ilimted anmount of
discretion so that an offender can go to work or take care of
soneone with a nedical condition or those kinds of things. He

said a man in his neighborhood got in an accident wthout
i nsurance and lost his license. He gives this neighbor a ride to
town, as the closest store is 12 mles away.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he wanted to bring the commttee’'s
attention to the fact that the bill has picked up very nodest
and indeterm nate fiscal notes.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved SB 53 from conmmittee with individua
recommendations and the four attached fiscal notes. W t hout
obj ection, the notion carried.

3:26 p.m

SCR_ 1- SUPPORT ROADS/ HOT SPRI NGS LOOP ROAD

CHAIR COANDERY invited Senator Lincoln to nmnake her comments on
SCR 1.

SENATOR LI NCOLN t hanked Chair Cowdery for taking up SCR 1 again.
She st at ed:

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 30- February 18, 2003



| understand that the individual that
to say that the

no |onger there. But | do want

was on line is

comunity, there was sone testinony earlier that there
was ki nd of a unani nous support for the resolution and
in fact there - Circle has taken a position that they
want to see the Crcle to Central roads inproved and
mai nt ai ned before they support a new road going into
their conmunity. And | know that the Tanana Chiefs
Conference hasn’'t taken a position on the piece of

| egi sl ation yet. But there’'s a real

concern that if

we’'re going to put nore noney out there for new roads
that we should look first to those that are in really

bad shape. And | will tell you that

Il was in Circle

| ast year and went from Circle to Central and that

road is an awful road.

CHAI R CONDERY interjected, “Atrail, it’s not aroad really.”

SENATOR LI NCOLN conti nued:

A trail, and they have to get folks sonetines to the

| arger airport to get them out for

nmedi cal reasons.

So | just - I want that on the record that the fol ks

up there are not endorsing this

resolution as it
stands now because they’ ve just got

terrible road

conditions presently. And | thank you for going back

to that M. Chairman.

Wth no further business to cone before
Cowdery adjourned the neeting at 3:38 p. m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -31-

the commttee, Chair

February 18, 2003



